
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 30 November 2020 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Microsoft Teams 
 

Membership: 
 
To be determined at Council on 24 November 2020 
 

All Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda 
below. 
 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 
 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4320 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Democratic Services or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

20 November 2020 
 



 

 anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 
 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 
 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Election of Chair of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

 Councillors are asked to elect the Chair of the Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the 2020/21 
Municipal Year. 
 

 

4.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

5.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 12 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2020. 
 

 

6.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution, which is available to view at the following 
link: 
  
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Inf
o=1&bcr=1 
  
The deadline for the submission of a public question is 4 clear working days 
before the meeting. 
 
The deadline for the submission of a public statement is midday the 
working day before the meeting. 
 
The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

 

7.   Action Sheet 13 - 14 

 To note and comment as required on the action sheet which tracks 
decisions, actions and outcomes arising from previous Committee 
meetings. 
 

 

8.   COVID19 Winter Response  

 To receive an update on the Dorset NHS and Public Health Dorset 
COVID19 Winter response. 
 

 

9.   Report on the Development and Performance of Tricuro 15 - 34 

 To receive a report from the Interim Managing Director of Tricuro on the 
position of Tricuro in respect of the management and status of services 
provided on behalf of BCP Council, including quality improvement, safety 
and safeguarding. 

 

The Chair of O&S Board and/or a representative of his will be invited to 
participate in scrutiny of this item. 

 

 

10.   Portfolio Holder Update  

 To receive any updates from the relevant Portfolio Holders on key issues or 
actions that have been taken since the last meeting, as appropriate. 
 

 

11.   Forward Plan 35 - 42 

 To consider and comment as appropriate on the development of the 
Committee’s Forward Plan. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the Meeting held on 28 September 2020 at 6.00 pm 

 
Present:- 

Cllr K Rampton – Chairman 

Cllr L-J Evans – Vice-Chairman 

 
Present: Cllr L Northover, Cllr H Allen, Cllr J Edwards, Cllr N C Geary, 

Cllr C Johnson, Cllr C Matthews, Cllr R Rocca, Cllr M Robson and 
Cllr D Butler 

 
 

81. Apologies  
 
There were no apologies for absence for this meeting. 
 

82. Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitute members for this meeting. 
 

83. Declarations of Interests  
 
Councillors made the following declarations of interest: 
 
Cllr H Allen declared, for transparency, that she is employed by the Royal 
Bournemouth Hospital. 
 
Cllr C Johnson declared, for transparency, that she is employed by the 
Royal Bournemouth Hospital.  
 

84. Confirmation of Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2020 were confirmed as a 
correct and accurate record. 
 

85. Public Issues  
 
There were no public questions, statements or petitions received for this 
meeting. 
 

86. Action Sheet  
 
An update was provided on minute number 59 of the Action Sheet. The 
Committee were informed that due to COVID19 and the interim 
constitutional arrangements, participation at a Council meeting could not be 
facilitated for external participants. Therefore, an all-member seminar 
session, conducted by the People First Forum, was being arranged. The 
session would provide information to Councillors on the People First 

5

Agenda Item 5



– 2 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

Forum’s Bill of Rights Charter and adults living with a learning disability in 
the BCP conurbation. 
 
Following this update, the action sheet was noted and there were no further 
comments. 
 
In addition to the summary of actions taken since the Committee’s previous 
meeting, the Portfolio Holder for Adults gave an update on work she had 
undertaken. The main points of the update were as follows: 
 

 A seminar on the local outbreak management plan had been held for 
all Councilllors and provided a clear brief on the plan. 

 Health and Wellbeing Board met in September and discussed a 
range of issues including the Safe and Well Checks. 

 The Joint Safeguarding Adults Board met in September following a 
huge amount of work completed to improve joined up working 
between all of the wide-ranging partnerships. 

 The Adult Lead Members for South West Board’s Quarterly meeting 
took place and provided a great insight into how other Councils are 
handling the COVID19 pandemic. Discussions varied from good 
practice, preparations for a second wave and also the impact of 
Brexit on Council services. 

 The Tricuro executive shareholder group have met several times 
throughout this period, focusing on arrangements for a new chief 
executive. 

 
There were no questions following the Portfolio Holder’s update. 
 

87. Learning Disability Annual Health Check Programme - Update  
 
The Committee received an update on the delivery of the Health Check 
programme from the Head of Service (Mental Health & Learning 
Disabilities) for NHS Dorset CCG. 
Members heard that the programme, which is a key feature in the NHS’ 
Long Term Plan and also features within the local Dorset Learning 
Disabilities and Autism plan, had been impacted by COVID19 and that 
there were challenges faced in its delivery. 
The Committee heard that 2000 annual healthchecks were completed last 
year, which accounted for 54% in Dorset and 60% in BCP. Members were 
told that this was not the level desired by the service but that figures are 
moving in the right direction.  
Conducting healthchecks has been highlighted as a priority within the 
Phase 3 recovery process across the whole of the NHS. A target of 67% 
completion rate has been set for end of the current financial year and a 
further target of 75% is set for the end of long-term plan. 
Quarter one, which was the main period affected by COVID19, saw 123 
healthchecks conducted, with 73 of these taking place in the BCP area. 
Priority work had been undertaken for the Phase 3 recovery process and a 
trajectory to achieve a 67% threshold of completed checks has been set.  

6



– 3 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

Work was also being done closely with GP Practices to increase the 
number of healthchecks that are completed. Furthermore, within the 
development of the local Primary Care Networks, several PCNs have 
highlighted annual healthchecks as a local priority and have added them to 
their local improvement plans. Several stakeholders have also been 
engaged, including Healthwatch and the People First Forum, to gain 
support from primary care and support the programme in delivering its aim. 
Members were informed that data was an important part of overseeing 
annual healthchecks and that the CCG intelligence team had been helping 
to development this approach alongside a task and finish group which ties 
in with the local quality improvement plan.  
An important factor that was highlighted was continuing to build 
relationships with different Learning Disability teams within the community 
and linking in with Public Health Dorset to provide positive steps for service 
users for healthy living. 
Work had been scheduled to build a help platform for GPs to share good 
practice experiences. Members heard that some practices had different 
approaches to healthchecks and that it would be beneficial to achieve 
consistency based on good practice. It was also heard that healthchecks 
could also be combined with flu vaccinations and that the ongoing principle 
of encourage people with learning disabilities to access primary care for 
healthchecks and to use the Yellow Book would continue. 
 
Several questions were asked by members and included whether the 
projections following Quarter One were too optimistic due to the risk of a 
second wave. The Head of Service (Mental Health & Learning Disabilities) 
for NHS Dorset CCG agreed that the projections were optimistic however 
hard work had and would continue to be undertaken to achieve these 
figures. Contextual information was provided on how, historically, different 
Quarters saw different numbers of healthchecks conducted and that efforts 
were currently being made to balance these variations out and achieve 
more consistency. Further information was given on contingency planning 
and it was heard that it would be difficult to make contingency plans due to 
the risk COVID19 presents to the learning disabilities cohort. National 
guidance had prompted virtual healthchecks to be explored for this 
purpose, and discussions with colleagues across South West have been 
held. The key priority for the service areas was to ensure that the cohort 
would not be put at any further risk, which includes the provision of full PPE 
and assessments on whether those at highest risk get healthchecks first. 
 
A question was raised on whether mobile units, similar to test centres, 
could be created to conduct healthchecks. The Committee heard that this 
was not something considered previously and that instead, where possible, 
the service would take practitioners to care home or home visits. This 
approach was being assessed by the task and finish groups on best 
practice. The Director of Primary and Community Care of NHS Dorset 
Clinical Commissioning Group expressed that they would feed this 
suggestion into the task and finish group and that the desirable aim would 
be to offer a menu of options and reduce the medicalised feel of 

7



– 4 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

healthchecks in order to best adapt them for all people with learning 
disabilities. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee agreed to note the content of the 
report as per the recommendation. 
 

88. Joint Business Plan 2020-22 of the Dorset and Bournemouth, Christchurch 
& Poole Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2019-20 of the 
Bournemouth, Christchurch & Poole Safeguarding Adults Board  
 
The Committee received an update on the progress of the Safeguarding 
Adults Board (SAB) objectives 2019-20, a summary of the overarching aims 
of the Board for 2020-22, an explanation of how the Board plan to achieve 
said aims and how the coronavirus pandemic may impact partner agencies’ 
ability to contribute to the plan. 
The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board began by 
summarizing the independent report that the Board commissioned from an 
external consultant. The primary aim of the review was to aid in evolving 
the governance structures of safeguarding. The commissioner was an 
Ofsted examiner and gave an overall positive update. 
Members heard that the highlights of the report included: 
• The Work of subgroups was deemed to be very useful. 
• The SAB’s policy and procedures, which are updated every year, 
were positive. 
• The reviews follow up process and the action plans for learning were 
complimented. 
• The Board could improve their ‘Line of Sight’ to understand actual 
performance better on a day to day basis. 
• Meeting structures were causing duplication and overlap.  
The Commissioner did not suggest a specific, new governance model, but 
the report showed that an overarching governance structure was required 
to strengthen safeguarding action. This would enable strategic planning to 
take place and allow staff to work better across the different themed areas 
of work. Domestic abuse was an issue that highlighted the need for better 
strategic planning to take place and reviews in the past suggested the need 
to integrate better and provide more support for individuals facing 
safeguarding issues. The overall message was that the SAB needed to 
continue to work harder on connecting on work across partnerships. 
COVID 19 doesn’t feature in this report as it was looming at time this report 
was undertaken but the Committee heard that the SAB keep in contact with 
providers and voluntary sector agencies to enable them to contribute to the 
business plan. A successful event informed providers and voluntary sector 
agencies on liberty protection safeguards as well providing information on 
how to help vulnerable people to build healthy relationships.  
The Committee heard that a Safeguarding Adults Review had also been 
undertaken and was published March 2019. A main aim was to disseminate 
the information more widely and communicate to providers how best to 
support people with a Learning Disability. The SAB ran a forum for service 
users looking at issues on personal safety for people who are vulnerable.  

8



– 5 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

The Committee asked several questions on this update. One member 
asked how far the Keeping Adults Safe leaflet was circulated and whether it 
also featured on other media formats. The Committee were told that the 
information was available on the SAB website, had been shared widely with 
Council partner organisations and that work alongside the People First 
Forum had delivered an easy read version of the findings. 
A question was posed on the findings data being difficult to interpret. The 
Independent Chair of the SAB explained that there would be more work 
done on analysing data to better relate it to information from partner 
organisations, but that this would need to be built into future resourcing. 
On a query about duplication of work at Board meetings, it was heard that 
the SAB had held three, joint face-to-face meetings in March. Also, a 
tripartite system had been trialed where each board would have their own, 
separate meetings and another one together. Both Boards met separately 
in July and then in September the tripartite approach was tried again. The 
SAB were now at the stage where they could reflect and review what 
meeting format works best and what specific issues require joint working. 
Finally, the Committee were informed that meetings had been scheduled in 
October with the purpose of progressing safeguarding governance.  
Safeguarding for homeless people and emergency temporary housing over 
the initial COVID19 lockdown was discussed following a question from a 
Member. The Committee heard that there had been a review into the cases 
of two homeless men that had died and that safeguarding of homeless 
people was a rising priority nationally as well as locally. This was in part 
due to the various new issues that occurred following emergency temporary 
housing, such as possible cuckooing and domestic abuse. 
 
Questions were posed on safeguarding for people who self-neglect. 
Members heard that the SAB had requested site of examples of case work 
on this topic. A self-neglect and hoarding panel was also being set up 
alongside national research into the issue. Anaylsis showed that self-
neglect ranked highly in the contributing factors of vulnerable people.  
A question on the financial implications facing adult safeguarding was 
raised. The Independent Chair of the SAB explained that funding was not 
spread evenly between contributors and that all SABs received the majority 
of their funding from the relevant local authority, CCG and Police. Funding 
was also received from the hospitals and Dorset Healthcare but not from 
the Probation Office. One of the things the SAB would review was the 
funding spread as it had not been reviewed for many years. This would 
involve a zero-based budgeting exercise to assess how much funding was 
needed how this should reasonably be spread across partners. 
 
 
The Independent Chairman of the SAB introduced the Business Plan 2020-
2022. Members heard that it was a joint plan across BCP and Dorset 
Council. COVID19 had delayed the development and progress the plan 
whilst also potentially delaying the actions set out. As a 2-year rolling plan, 
an element of flexibility is needed due to problems that new outbreaks of 
COVID19 would cause. The Board were planning a reflective learning event 
for October to evaluate the impacts and lessons to be learned on keeping 

9



– 6 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

people safe in Care Homes going forward and to ensure that the Winter 
response addresses any known issues. An SAB in the Midlands was 
conducting a review into this matter and the Independent Chair felt that it 
was the right time to evaluate what opportunities have been missed while 
dealing with the COVID19 pandemic from a safeguarding perspective.   
The Committee heard that existing priorities were being built upon, such as 
Domestic Abuse. Services were becoming more alert to the wider extent of 
domestic abuse. Current reviews into cases in Dorset and abuse over long 
periods of time were being conducted. 
Neglect and self-neglect were also big areas of concern for safeguarding 
and, similar to domestic abuse, they can entail lots of different categories of 
safeguarding. Members heard that it was difficult to target how to prevent 
neglect as it can occur in numerous forms, such as a carer not following a 
care plan, or a medicine regime. More work was needed to understand the 
issue locally and it remained a priority for both Boards.  
Adaptions would have to take place in order to adapt to the numerous, 
emerging and pre-existing issues. 
 
A question was asked on the issue of problem drinking, and a Member 
referenced a report from the national leaders of General Practice that 
suggested the number of individuals with a drinking problem had increased 
from 4.8 mil to 8.4 since February 2020. Local alcohol liaison services had 
seen a significant increase, including young people requiring help. The 
Committee heard that the national work on dependent drinking was to be 
completed at the end of the financial year and that it was a project between 
20 partners, funded by Public Health England.  
The Independent Chair of the SAB discussed the pressure on services due 
to COVID19 and highlighted loneliness, bereavement and dealing with 
grief. From this, services were noticing that there was an increase in the 
reasons for depression and neglect to occur.  
On the subject of emergency service calls concerning safeguarding, the 
Committee were informed that there had been a 50% increase. However, 
not all of these calls had required further action and very few had resulted 
in a section 42. Most calls were concerning lack of care packages or care 
concerns. The Director of Adult Social Care explained that the quality of the 
Council’s triage service saw fewer cases go further or lead to Section 42s.  
The Committee referenced Appendix 2 of the report, the “Feedback from 
‘Harry Learning Event” and requested that the answers be provided for the 
‘questions from the panel’ section. The Independent Chair of the SAB 
offered to seek whether these questions had been answered and respond 
to Members at a later date.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee agreed to note the content of both 
reports as per the recommendations. 
 

89. Adult Social Care Charging Policy  
 
The Head of Adult Social Care presented the report and began by 
explaining the context of this piece of work. Members were reminded that 
there were three legacy charging policies for Adult Social Care across BCP 

10



– 7 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

and that the decision to harmonise these charges centred on the principles 
of equity for all residents and full cost recovery. The Head of Strategic 
Development & Change Management informed the Committee of the 
charging assessment process and how said process determines the charge 
a user will be required to pay towards their social care. Members were 
reassured that a proposed mitigation in the case of certain, extreme 
situations would be for the Head of Adult Services to wave the charges. 
Members then head from the Principal Research Officer for Organisational 
Development on the outcome of the public consultation to which 3000 
service users, carers and other stakeholders provided feedback. 
The Lead Member of the Adult Social Care Charging Policy Working Group 
gave an update on the Group’s final meeting. Highlights from the meeting 
included questions on consultation responses, simplification of language, 
combination of transport charges and day centre charges, delays to 
implementation of policy and mitigating factors. The Committee heard that 
the Working Group provided test and challenge to the development of the 
policy and endorsed the recommendations of the officers. 
The Committee considered the proposed single charging policy and the 
recommendations of the Adult Social Care Charging Policy Working Group 
before voting on the individual recommendations contained with the report.  
 
RESOLVED that each of the recommendations, contained within the 
Officer’s report be approved. The recommendations are as follows: 
 
(a) The findings of the consultation are noted and commented on. 
 
(b) Committee recommend to Cabinet that the new Adult Social Care 
Charging policy is approved. 
 
(c) Committee support the use of mitigation measures which assist 
clients when moving to new charging arrangements as set out in 
paragraphs 17 to 21 of the report. 
 

90. Forward Plan  
 
The Committee considered the Forward Plan and the following requests 
were made: 

 H Allen asked for an update to come to Committee in 6 months’ time, 
following implementation of the Adult Social Care Charging Strategy. 

 J Edwards requested an update on GP services response to 
COVID19 to which the Director of Primary and Community Care, 
NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group explained that this could 
be included in the Winter Response item at the Committee’s next 
meeting. 

 The Chair requested that scrutiny of Tricuro be added to the Forward 
Plan for the next meeting with the suggestion that members of the 
O&S Board be invited as the item may cover the remit of both 
bodies. 

11



– 8 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

28 September 2020 
 

 Cllr H Allen suggested that the item on scrutiny of Health services for 
people who are Homeless and Rough Sleeping be considered at 
Committee in the New Year or early Spring 2021. 

 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan was agreed and approved by the 
Committee. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.50 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

12



 ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

 
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 2 March 2020 

59 The Big Plan For officers to discuss the options for the 
People First Forum to attend a future Full 
Council meeting where the Bill of Rights 
Charter will be considered.  
 
Action: An all-member seminar, conducted 
by the People First Forum, was held on 29 
October. Following the session, a 
recording of the meeting was circulated to 
all Councillors. 
 

To enable the voices of a 
local group (People First 
Forum) to be 
appropriately heard at 
Council. 

The People First 
Forum’s Bill of 
Rights Charter and 
the endorsement 
from Health and 
Adult Social Care 
O&S Committee will 
be considered at 
Council on 24 
November 2020. 

63 Forward Plan For the Chairman to work with Key Officers on 
how best to consider the ongoing issue of 
Covid-19. 
 
Added: For the Committee to receive a brief, 
regular email update on the Council’s 
COVID19 ASC response. 
 

For members to receive 
up to date, expert 
information on the 
ongoing issue of Covid-
19. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

A
genda Item

 7



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 28 September 2020 

88 Joint Business 
Plan 2020-22 of 
the Dorset and 
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch & 
Poole 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board - 
Annual Report 
2019-20 of the 
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch & 
Poole 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board 

For members to receive answers to the 
questions for the panel section of the 
“Feedback from ‘Harry Learning Event” in 
Appendix 2 of the report. 

For members to monitor 
what actions are being 
taken to identify and 
improve the support, 
challenges, risks and 
opportunities when 
dealing with vulnerable 
adults. 

 

 

14



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

  

Report subject  Report on the Development and Performance of Tricuro 

Meeting date  30 November 2020  

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report and appended report from the Interim Managing  

Director of Tricuro provides information to members of the  

Committee on the position of Tricuro in respect of the  

management and status of services provided on behalf of  

BCP Council, including quality improvement, safety and  

safeguarding. 
 

Recommendations  

  

It is RECOMMENDED that:  

a. members scrutinise the performance of the company 

b. Identify any key areas for further consideration by the 
Committee 

 

Reason for 

recommendations  

Tricuro is a Local Authority Trading Company ( LATC) wholly 

owned by BCP Council and Dorset Council.  It provides care 

and support services to vulnerable adults and their carers. 

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the service delivery and 

financial performance of the company to ensure good quality 

services are being provided and the opportunities offered by a 

LATC are being realised.  

 

  

15

Agenda Item 9



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Karen Rampton, Portfolio Holder for Adults  

Corporate Director  
Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director - Adult Social Care  

Contributors  Phil Hornsby, Director, Adult Social Care Commissioning 

Graham Wilkin, Tricuro Interim Managing Director  

Wards  All  

Classification  For [Recommendation/Decision/Update and Information]  
Title:  

Background   

1. Tricuro, the Local Authority Trading Company originally wholly owned by the three 

local authorities (Borough of Poole, Bournemouth Borough Council and Dorset County 

Council) was successfully launched in July 2015. Unlike a private company, the 3 

councils held 100 per cent of the shares in Tricuro and retained strategic control 

through an Executive Shareholder Group (ESG). This group was made up of elected 

members from all three councils who ensured that the Councils set strategic objectives 

for the company, received reports on progress against the Business Plan, service and 

quality performance, the review of future service developments and new business 

opportunities. 

 

2. The three authorities transferred a number of in-house services at the time Tricuro 

was established on the transferred employees existing terms and conditions. 

 

3. When BCP Council and Dorset Council were formed in 2019, Tricuro’s shares were 

split equally between the two councils and both have equal numbers of elected 

members on the ESG.  

 

4. A detailed report from the Interim Managing Director of Tricuro is included (Appendix 

1) which sets out the management and status of the services provided by Tricuro on 

behalf of BCP Council and the challenges and approaches taken during the Covid-19 

pandemic to continue to support the vulnerable adults within its care. The report also 

includes the ESG supported approach to the modernisation of Tricuro’s services that 

are aligned to BCP Council’s corporate priorities and objectives, the steps taken to 

strengthen quality and other service improvements. 

 

 

16



Summary of financial implications   

3.  The contractual arrangements between BCP Council and Tricuro have a value of 

£18,706,800 in 2020/2021. A detailed breakdown is included within the Interim 

Managing Director’s appended report. 

4. As part of the contract price negotiations, efficiencies and savings have been 

delivered by the company and further efficiencies are expected as the 

modernisation programme progresses. 

Summary of legal implications   

5. The relationship with Tricuro is underpinned by two forms of legal agreement; the 

services contracts held with the company by each council for the delivery of 

services and the Shareholder Agreement. 

Summary of human resources implications   

6.   None 

Summary of environmental impact   

6.  None 

Summary of public health implications   

7.  None 

Summary of equality implications   

8.  Tricuro provides a range of services to vulnerable adults with a wide range of 

conditions and their services have a positive impact on their lives. 

Summary of risk assessment   

9.  None in relation to this report 

Background papers   

None 

Appendices   

1, Report of the Interim Managing Director of Tricuro   

17



This page is intentionally left blank

18



 

1 
 

 
 
HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Appendix 1 - Report from the Interim Managing Director of Tricuro  
 
 
 
 

 

 

   

   

       

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

 
 

  

Contents:

1.   Purpose of Report ................................................................................................... 2

2.   Background ............................................................................................................. 2

3. Covid – 19................................................................................................................. 2

4.   Services Provision under the Current Contract .................................................... 3

5.   Residential Care ...................................................................................................... 3

6.   Day Services............................................................................................................ 4

7.   Reablement Services .............................................................................................. 5

8.   Quality Assurance, Safeguarding and Safety........................................................ 5

9.   People Strategy ....................................................................................................... 6

10. Transformation ........................................................................................................ 7

Day Services ............................................................................................................ 7

Digital Strategy ........................................................................................................ 9

Aims ......................................................................................................................... 9

Residential Services.............................................................................................. 10

Reablement ............................................................................................................ 11

Co-Production........................................................................................................ 11

11. Financial Position.................................................................................................. 11

12. Financial Results....................................................................................................12 

13. Income Generation................................................................................................15

14. Summary................................................................................................................15

19



 

2 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report will update and inform the BCP Council Scrutiny Committee on the 
position in respect of the management and status of services provided on behalf of 
BCP by Tricuro. It will also provide further information on the management and 
effect of the Covid Pandemic on services and a position statement, following 
shareholder approval at ESG in June, on our service modernisation which have 
become our transformation plan. An update relating to quality improvement, safety 
and safeguarding is also included with associated action plan enclosed, as is a 
financial position statement 

2. Background 
 

2.1 Tricuro provides a portfolio of seventeen services on behalf of BCP Council. The 
service portfolio is made up of day services, reablement and residential / nursing 
care. The contract value is £18.7M and we currently employ approximately 590 staff 
to meet the contract requirements. 

3. Covid – 19 
 

3.1 The UK lockdown introduced by the Government in response to the pandemic took 
place two weeks into being appointed. During those first two weeks we worked 
closely with our commissioning colleagues from BCP Council and DC through daily 
calls in the planning of activity and management of the C-19 virus. This resulted in 
the early closure to all our residential homes to visitors, with the exception of crucial 
deliveries and NHS staff, and the temporary closure of our day services. These 
early decisions, made prior to government guidance, almost certainly helped 
manage and contain the risk and save lives. 

 
3.2 It was evident that having not just an operational but also a strategic response to 

the virus was likely to be intrinsic to its safe management. 
 
3.3 The following decisions and actions were put in place within the first few weeks: 

 Weekly Monday morning C-19 briefing / actions review meeting with the Senior 
Leadership Team 

 Review of all business continuity plans – Operations Lead 

 Develop PPE strategy and system to order, distribute and maintain supplies and 
accessibility of PPE across the service  

 Review of infection control policies / procedures 

 Improve links with PHE (Dorset) 

 Development of Internal and external communications including web page and 
allocate named lead 

 Develop quick response capability to government guidelines 

 Review operational management structure 

 Decision to recruit Interim Op’s Director to lead operations response 

 Identify two named locality leads to work with each respective LA in developing 
strategies and plans for the safe support of people who attend day services  

 Develop new policies and procedures re visiting and risk assessment 

 Review staff support strategies and access to mental health first aid and other 
resources 

20



 

3 
 

 Develop weekly Tricuro Cares to celebrate actions being taken by individual staff 
and clients and also use as a way to keep staff informed 

 Worked across Dorset with respective partners in developing PPE sourcing and 
distribution network.  

 Weekly status brief to commissioners on C-19 incidences with follow-up meeting 

 Close working with respective commissioners in pandemic management plans 
including consideration of alternative resources. 

 Working with families and clients to consider support needs and how best to 
maintain contact which led to an increase of the use of assistive technology 

 Greater emphasis on strength based models of Intervention  

 Renewed focus on personalised care 

 
3.4 As with all providers of care the pandemic has been hugely challenging but our 

staff, at all levels have acted with professionalism and agility in their efforts to keep 
vulnerable people safe. This includes some staff residing within the units rather than 
going home and risk spreading the virus.  

 
3.5 Throughout the period we kept a log of decisions made which we use as a ‘lessons 

learnt’ for our SLT. We have used this to plan for the second wave to ensure our 
responses continue to keep people safe and adhere to both good practice and 
government guidelines, and this is reviewed at our weekly SLT and supported by 
our Monday morning C-19 SLT status briefing. 

 
3.6 Strategically we recognise that some of the changes, particularly in day services, 

have brought about opportunities to do things differently. We are working with our 
commissioning and locality colleagues as part of our transformation in developing 
new ways of working in this area as described below.      

 

4. Services Provision under the Current Contract 
 

4.1 Tricuro currently provides a portfolio of seventeen services on behalf of BCP 
Council. 

4.2 Residential services for frail elderly clients and those with Alzheimer’s or dementia. 
Some provision for adults learning disabilities, and supported living at Leven House 
for working age adults with Mental Health issues. 
 

4.3 We also provide a total of nine day service type resources. This includes a kitchen 
project concerned with supporting adults with a learning disability which is based in 
a local School providing up to 350 hot meals a day.  
 

4.4 Some of the buildings currently in use for day service would not be judged as being 
fit for purpose, and any more suitable alternatives to how day services are delivered 
in the future may need to consider the suitability of some of the current provision in 
its thinking. 

 

5. Residential Care 
 

5.1 Many of the buildings in which we provide residential care are old and would require 
significant capital investment. The majority of the current provision does not provide 

21



 

4 
 

what would be deemed standard, such as en-suit facilities. The use of mobile hoists 
is compromised, and the geographical layout means that a higher level of staffing is 
required due to the lack of visual opportunities. Whist care ratings have been 
assessed as good from CQC for all our residential care homes, this does not reflect 
some of the challenges these environments pose. 
 

5.2 We understand that there is an over provision of residential care locally and support 
the council’s strategic intent to have fewer people admitted to long term residential 
care and instead given an opportunity to live more independently within the 
community. 

 
5.3 During the 2019/20 financial year, BCP Council completed the purchase of MD 

Care and passported the operating of Fairways Care Home to Tricuro on 30th 
September 2019. It has been identified that some building improvements are 
required and we are working through this with BCP Council to ensure we maximise 
the use of the building going forwards. 

 
5.4 A move to greater use of supported living or extra care housing has proved to be 

very successful in other parts of the country and allowed people not only to become 
tenants of their own home but also increased opportunities for them in the 
community; this and the move from what people can’t do to a focus on what they 
can via a strength based way of working is welcomed by Tricuro, and we would be 
keen to work with our Council colleagues through our mutual transformation plans 
to explore how our services can make this transition utilising the skills set and 
experience our staff have. 

 
5.5 The Covid pandemic has enabled us to work with commissioners in considering the 

future utilisation of some of our homes. Coastal lodge is being used by social care 
and health partners as a step-down facility enabling speedier discharge from 
hospital with a potential for an isolation unit should community hospitals get blocked 
subject to CQC approval. 
 

5.6 We have also offered vacant beds across our residential / nursing provision as step-
down resource if required. These beds will be supported by our reablement team to 
help people regain the skills required to return safely home. 
 

6. Day Services 
 

6.1 Historically our day services have been predisposed to building based offer care. 
The pandemic has enabled us to work more closely with BCP Council locality teams 
and commissioners in providing new opportunities to support clients and family 
carers in the community. Whilst the need for a building based service is essential 
for some people with high complex needs, an outward looking offer provides 
opportunities for vulnerable adults to access other services the community has to 
offer with the level of support they personally require being provided by Tricuro. 
 

6.2 At the height of the pandemic we were able to provide regular calls, and in some 
instances visits to vulnerable adults and their respective carers. Since the relaxing 
of the of the first lockdown we have worked with commissioners, clients, carers and 
locality teams and are providing emergency day respite and services to our most 

22



 

5 
 

vulnerable clients whilst ensuring we abide by strict government guidance. We have 
also continued to provide a service to clients and carers whereby attending a day 
service is not deemed as essential. This includes using technology to remain in 
contact and as required occasional visits or prior to the latest lockdown trips out. 
 

6.3 We have utilised technology to link people with familiar friendship groups so 
important social contact can remain in place and developed ways whereby people 
have been able to utilise their time creatively with support via video link.   
 

6.4 The pandemic has highlighted the potential for clients attending traditional day 
services. By embracing the personalisation agenda and a strength based approach, 
with the use of some technology the opportunities for vulnerable adults can expand 
along with their confidence and skills.  
 

6.5 We are committed to continuing to work with BCP Council through its commission 
teams and respective localities in ensuring that day service opportunities for those 
that need it remain high quality, personalised and forward thinking, and used as a 
way to maximise independence and opportunities. 
 

7. Reablement Services 
 

7.1 During the height of the pandemic the reablement service continued to support 
hospital discharges and people within their own home. Our staff worked flexibly to 
ensure that the service continued to be offered where and when needed.  
 

7.2 More recently our reablement team has integrated into the Single point of access 
team to provide improved response times and the feedback has been very positive. 
We are developing the service further to enable better reablement support into 
intermediate care beds within Tricuro to help support and return people back home 
sooner. This should provide better flow across the system and ease some of the 
delayed discharges from the acute hospitals. 
 

7.3 Our reablement service is working closely with all partners as part of a more 
integrated pathway and the feedback we have received has been very positive. Our 
managers and staff are embracing different ways of working and their skill-set is 
being recognised as a key element in returning people home and maximising 
independence. 
 

8. Quality Assurance, Safeguarding and Safety 
 

8.1 As noted earlier, within this report there was a lack of experience and expertise at 
senior operational management level. This included the absence of a director of 
operations able to inform and influence at executive level. 
 

8.2 As with all provider organisations we have experienced some safeguarding issue, 
however its important to note that we maintain our a CQC rating of good in all of our 
residential homes. We are keen to continually improve and have worked very 
closely with the BCP Council safeguarding team in ensuring knowledge, skills, 
understanding and practice of safeguarding is improved and that all staff from 

23



 

6 
 

executive down are trained in recognising safeguarding and are able to report and 
act appropriately. 
 

8.3 We have undergone a thorough review of quality, safety and safeguarding practices 
across all services and developed a comprehensive action plan key actions include: 

 Introduction of Safeguarding leads for all services 

 Ongoing scrutiny of mandatory training attendance 

 Review of corporate and team induction 

 Introduction of team manager competency schedule 
 

8.4 The safeguarding and safety of all our clients takes precedent over all other 
considerations and we have been robust in identifying and brining in supportive 
ways to improve performance across our services, recognising that a cultural shift in 
understanding and practice is necessary in some instances  
 

8.5 Reporting of incidents has improved significantly as has areas such recording on 
the Nourish system and general hydration/ nutrition awareness.  
 

8.6 We will be introducing a revised supervision framework which will focus on 
reflective and evidence based practice to help monitor how good practice is being 
embedded. This will be further supported by a review of our QA team and 
framework. 
 

8.7 The feedback we have recently received from our commissioning and safeguarding 
colleagues at BCP has been very positive with regard to the refreshed focus given 
to safeguarding awareness and practice 
 

9. People Strategy 
 

9.1 As with all employers our greatest asset is our staff and it is incumbent upon us to 
ensure they are well supported to do their respective jobs. We rely on a well trained 
healthy workforce that is able to flex and meet the demands of the job. We have 
identified a number of areas which require greater focus to deliver the above intent. 
There has been for a number of years issues with levels of sickness absenteeism. 
Recruitment has been problematic and neither has had a strategic plan to manage 
the challenges effectively. Other areas which we recognise need greater emphasis 
is learning and development, supervision and appraisal and Induction. These 
themes now form part of our emerging People strategy. 
 

9.2 We are in the process of developing a cross cutting people strategy for Tricuro 
which includes the following domains: 

 Communication and engagement 

 Recruitment – Selection - and retention 

 Review of Supervision and Appraisal 

 Equality and Inclusion 

 Sickness and Absence Management 

 Health and wellbeing 

 Succession planning 

24



 

7 
 

Learning and Development 

 Statutory training 

 Mandatory training 

 Apprenticeships 

 Leadership and professional development 

 
Induction 

 Corporate Induction 

 Team / Service Induction – Personal development logs 

9.3 This is a comprehensive piece of work which is owned by the whole senior 
leadership team and will be supported by named leads and respective delivery 
groups headed by our HR and corporate leads. Work has already begun on the 
recruitment strategy and had some early success in how we advertise and process 
potential candidates and reducing the time between application to appointment from 
months to weeks. We are doing more work with managers and staff on the issues 
around managing absence whilst the full strategy is being developed. 
 

9.4 A review of our training offer is underway as is the corporate and team inductions. 
We are confident that the people strategy will bring about sustained and 
measurable improvement in all domains. 
 

10. Transformation  
 

10.1 Our business / Modernisation strategy was approved at ESG in June this year. The 
strategy took full account of BCP Council and Dorset Council’s respective strategic 
plans and has a focus on the personalisation agenda with a strength based 
approach to service delivery. Our aim, much like that contained within fulfilled lives 
document, is to maximise independence by keeping or returning people to their own 
homes within the community. This intent applies to those in receipt of day services 
as much as residential.  

 
10.2 We have worked closely with our commissioning colleagues in the development of 

our plans and have in place a joint Transformation board to approve respective 
project initiation plans to ensure full compliance with strategic aims and objectives. 
As stated earlier within this report, we have taken advantage in learning from the 
closure of some services and capitalised on the opportunities it presented in doing 
things differently. 

Day Services   
 

10.3 Day service provision within Tricuro has shown in recent months due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, that having a more community and outward looking focus can bring 
about new opportunities and improved outcomes for vulnerable adults by 
encouraging and supporting people to use community based leisure, education and 
other facilities that most of us take for granted.   
 

10.4 The points below are being considered in partnership with our commissioning 
colleagues as part of the emerging thinking. This shows both the intent and extent 

25



 

8 
 

of the modernisation through transformation taking place to meet the strategic aims 
of the Council in its aim to maximise Independence through a more personalised 
approach.  
 

10.5 Day Services: 
 

 will operate as part of a whole system offer (with other partners), that provides a 
rehabilitative, recovery and preventative approach of care including for people at 
risk of, with, or recovering from clinical depression, severe anxiety, states or 
psychosis, some of whom are within the care of the Mental Health Service. As 
part whole system.  

 

 as part of risk management for people who may be at risk of self- neglect or 
abuse.  

 

 to help manage the risk for some people who are mainly at home for large parts 
of the day and, for example, may have dementia and be at risk of wandering; or 
people may attend a day service because they have been advised that this is in 
their best interest or to provide their carer with some respite. A person must 
consent to go to a day service.  

 

 Provide opportunities to access community focused activities which will enhance 
independence, learning and or career opportunities 

 

10.6 Key Objectives to be considered with BCP Council colleagues: 
 

 To adopt a community focused approach to delivery that supports clients to access a 
range of alternative personalised opportunities within the community.  

 
 To reduce the use of traditional building-based provision.  

 
 To adopt a service model that places a greater emphasis on independent living by 

focusing on the opportunities, based on a person’s skillset, to achieve greater control 
over their life.  

 
 To ensure that there is the provision of education / employment opportunities that will 

encourage individuals to work for themselves or with others for reward.  
 

 To ensure that there is easy access to health - based activities that promote a client’s 
health and wellbeing by staying fit and remaining healthy.  

 
 To use digital technology in our service provision e.g. to prevent isolation. 

 
 To reduce the unit cost of the service realising savings to the core care contract. 
 

10.7 We will continue to work in full collaboration with our commissioning colleagues 
from BCP Council to ensure all decisions and plans are set against and fully 
support the Fulfilled lives intent and priorities. 

 

26



 

9 
 

Digital Strategy   
 

10.8 Tricuro has suffered from a lack of a strategy for digital technology and has been 
unable to keep pace with the opportunities provided with the digital change other 
service providers have taken advantage of, to their benefit. This (amongst other 
reasons) has led to Tricuro services being seen as dated.  
 

10.9 We have recognised these issues and conducted a digital maturity assessment. 
This shows our recent engagement with our key stakeholders around digital 
development of Tricuro services, making progress towards a more digitally mature 
company. However, it also evidences key deficiencies in our strategic approach, 
culture and use of technology, further evidencing the need for change. 

 
10.10 Some of our key challenges are:  

 Limited in the range of digital service we can offer in comparison to our 
competitors  

 Having to use multiple systems to manage our clients and workforce which don't 
naturally share data  

 Having a lack of adequate hardware/software and the right skills in the right place 
to digitally transform our services  

 Our partnership working and project management with our ICT providers must 
improve and become far more collaborative if we are to successfully digitally 
transform.  

Aims  
 

10.11 Our service outcomes are to enhance and support the strategic intent of the 
Councils fulfilled lives initiative. Effective digital evolution will differ in the following 
four sectors depending on the needs of each Individual:  

 Day Services  

 Residential services  

 Reablement services  

 Corporate Function  

Day Services:  
Outcome 1 - Digital Service Transformation - Becoming Digitally Agile  

 Day services transform from buildings based to community-based presenting new 
challenges, to address these challenges we will create a digitally agile environment, 
this means:  
 

 We will take digital first approach to confronting challenges  
 

 When we identify an opportunity for a digital solution, we will move to exploration of 
options quickly.  
 

 We will look at real world examples and take our ques from other care providers 
alongside novel or innovative ideas.  

 

27



 

10 
 

10.12 These principles will shorten the time from "idea to implementation", creating 
greater responsiveness  
 

10.13 The adoption of digital solutions provides opportunities to explore new service 
delivery models - for example - digital life skills trainers, digital wellbeing checks or 
Zoom based day services  
 

10.14 Stakeholder coproduction is a key component of digital service design, taking a 
strengths-based and whole system approach to digital day services  
 

10.15 To link with BCP Smart Place Initiative and ensure compatibility and a joining up to 
support our joint initiatives. 

10.16 Digital workforce: 
 Services have digital champions, supporting clients and staff members with their 

personal digital journey.  

 Staff are supported with training, access to resources and capacity to develop the 
skills need to become effective digital operators,  

 Staff have the skills and the resources to guide clients to the right digital solution 
for them  

 Staff can support clients and their respective carers with digital support, providing 
a holistic approach to digital wellbeing.  

 

Residential Services  
 

10.17 The Digital Home:  

 All residential services are equipped to accept any smart home technology  

 Smart home/assistive tech is actively and regularly considered as a way of:  

 Supporting independence  

 Creating safer spaces  

 Improving client outcomes  

10.18 Within older people's services there is one room set up as a smart home tech room, 
complete with latest assistive tech for demonstrating to clients and their families 
how technology can be used. This will be supported with video tours to further 
overcome barriers to inclusion.  
 

10.19 Older people's services can provide clients and families with signposting to 
supportive smart home technology should they wish to self-fund.  Should a client 
self-fund smart home assistive tech the service will assist with installation and 
ensure it is available to be used by the client.  
 

10.20 Digital Wellbeing:  

 Digital wellbeing becomes part of the initial assessment criteria and is incorporated 
into a client's support plan upon referral into a residential service.  

 Residential services include digital wellbeing and consider digital solutions as part of 
the regular client review process  

 

28



 

11 
 

Reablement 
 

10.21 Through the introduction of People Planner, the new rostering system that replaces 
HOCAS, efficiencies will be found across the county wide reablement system. It is 
likely that a figure of ~£100k could be found within the management and support 
structure with further, harder to quantify, efficiencies being found in front line 
delivery.  
 

10.22 It is anticipated that any efficiency savings will be reinvested in additional front-line 
capacity to further support the joint health/social care pathway. 
 

Co-Production  
 

10.23 Tricuro commits itself fully to coproduction during its digital transformation. We will 
actively pursue coproduction opportunities with all key stakeholders however we will 
particularly focus on working with:  

 Our clients, carers and families  

 Our staff members  

 Our shareholders  

10.24 The transformation programme will provide opportunities for co-production, 
particularly key will be the oversight and signposting provided by the joint 
Transformation Board alongside the fortnightly Implementation Management Group, 
providing opportunity for coproduction with shareholders, people who use our 
service, families and carers.  
 

10.25 We recognise that we have a responsibility as a council owned business to help 
support and contribute to the efficiencies and savings required in these challenging 
times, and, identifying real saving potential through the transformation programme 
whilst difficult to quantify is an absolute requirement as we continue to work with our 
BCP Colleagues on the shaping and delivery of our modernisation through the 
Transformation programme. 
 

11. Financial Position 
 

11.1 Contract Price: 
 

11.2 On 1st April 2019 BCP Council was formed, services from the former Borough of 
Poole Council, Bournemouth Borough Council and the Christchurch area of Dorset 
County Council became BCP’s share of Tricuro. 
 

11.3 BCP holds 50% of the voting rights in Tricuro (via its 5 members of the Executive 
Shareholder Group) and a profit-sharing ratio of 44%. 
 
 

29



 

12 
 

 
 

11.4 During the financial year 2019/20 BCP concluded the acquisition of MD Care and 
passported Fairways Care Home into Tricuro’s care contract. This increased the 
contract value by a further £1.5M and increased the overall income by £2.4M due to 
the addition of 24 private beds for Tricuro to sell to the wider market. 
 

11.5 During the current financial year, we have completed a restructure of the 
Community Support Team realising £150k of in year savings (£250k full year effect 
from April 2021). 
 

 

12. Financial Results 
 

12.1 In 2019/20 Tricuro made £556k post-tax profit increasing its retained earnings to 
£1.99M, as shown below: 

 
 

30



 

13 
 

 
 

 
 

31



 

14 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

15 
 

13. Income Generation 
 

13.1 One of the key reasons to launch Tricuro was to generate additional income, that 
would not be possible whilst these provider services were run directly within the 
Local Authorities. However, during the 2016/17 budget setting phase, the drastic 
cuts to the revenue support grants within all three shareholders shifted the focus to 
short term measures and cost control. Little investment was available to develop 
these services and be able to plan large scale income generation.  
 

13.2 Despite this, in November 2017 Tricuro opened its doors to trade with private fee 
payers (after agreement from ESG). The first area for private sales was within day 
services, utilising additional building space/capacity and other management 
costs/overheads (sunk costs) allowing strong margins. Since then, several beds 
have been released from the residential stock within the block contracts and 
reablement teams have sold private hours to limit the impact of block contract 
reductions and improve overall efficiency in their operations. 
 

13.3 Companywide, these sales have grown from a monthly average of £12k in the first 
quarter of trading to a monthly average of £120k by March 2019 and £197k by the 
end of the last financial year.  
 

13.4 For BCP Council area services, in 2019/20 private sales totalled £718k, providing 
significant additional contribution to overheads and generating profit with which to 
support BCP’s block contract price.  
 

13.5 Further opportunities may be realised with the agreement of commissioners and 
ESG with the exploration of utilising voids for the use of the NHS through options 
provided through duel registration. This could be particularly useful in utilising 
vacant beds as the Council progresses with its fulfilled lives strategy in utilising the 
resource for the whole system whilst bringing income from an alternative funding 
source. This could also potentially help with the over provision of residential beds 
across the system and the under provision of nursing beds. 
 

14. Summary 
 

14.1 The development of Tricuro in 2015 oversaw the transfer of a number of services 
into its operating portfolio. Many of these services had maintained a delivery model 
which at the time of transfer appeared safe and able to meet the requirements at 
the time. The onset of the Care Act in 2014 and the Implementation the following 
year brought about significant changes in how Social Care should be delivered. 
Central to this is the person centred care or personalisation and a renewed focus on 
prevention. Tricuro’s offer in light of these changes altered very little and did not 
necessarily capitalise on the benefits these changes could have on its clients, 
families and staff.  
 

14.2 Whilst the company can demonstrate financial sustainability it would be difficult to 
match this with service sustainability without fully embracing the personalisation 
agenda through our modernisation / transformation programme.  
 

33



 

16 
 

14.3 The modernisation of our services is coupled with renewed efforts to work in close 
collaboration and partnership with our colleagues at BCP Council. Our strategy 
needs to be your strategy and having regular open dialog through our 
Transformation board and delivery groups is proving beneficial to all concerned and 
ensured compliance and synergy with the BCP Council adult services strategic 
direction   
 

14.4 Modernisation is likely to bring about other business opportunities which should 
increase income and therefore the dividend to shareholders. Any opportunity will be 
discussed and shared openly with our partners at BCP Council prior to any plans 
developing. 
 

14.5 The lack of Operational Social care expertise at executive level is being addressed 
and the review of the management structure has proven to be very positive.  
 

14.6 Despite out modernisation agenda our main priority remains the quality and safety 
of residents and our Improvement strategy / plans are bringing about systemic 
changes in what we do and how we do it. These changes will be supported by the 
emerging people strategy which will contribute to the necessary cultural changes 
required to bring about sustained improvements. 
 

14.7 The Covid Pandemic has demonstrated a number of positives. The workforce and 
executive can work with agility and creatively with all stakeholders in managing 
services safely at a time of national and local crisis. It is able to quickly learn and 
embrace new ways of working with the right leadership in place. 
 

14.8 Tricuro is demonstrating a consistent ability to embrace the personalisation agenda 
through a more strength based delivery and engage and support vulnerable people 
and their families in partnership with BCP Council colleagues in new and innovative 
ways of working and receiving care. 
 

14.9 Our modernisation and joint transformational approach demonstrate a willingness 
and capacity for systemic change across our service portfolio as has our 
determination and plans to utilise technology in pursuit of person centred care to 
maximise independence.  
 

14.10 Tricuro has had some challenges over recent years but it is a company fully 
recognising and addressing its issues whilst embracing positive change to be fit for 
the future.  

 
 
 
 
Graham Wilkin 
Interim Managing Director 
Tricuro  

34



Forward Plan – BCP Health & Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 

 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

 Meeting Date – 30 November 2020 

1 COVID19 NHS Winter Response  
 
To receive a presentation from 
partners across Dorset NHS, 
Dorset CCG and Public Health 
Dorset on the Winter response to 
COVID19. 

The requested update on the NHS 
and Public Health Winter response to 
COVID19 will allow members to 
monitor the ongoing situation and 
identify any areas of future scrutiny 
relating to the COVID19 response. 

Presentation Sam Crowe, PH Dorset 
 
Tim Goodson, Dorset CCG  
 
Sally Sandcraft, Dorset CCG  
 
Richard Renault, University 
Hospitals Trust 
 
Debbie Fleming, Chief Executive of 
UHD NHS FT 
 
Eugine Yafele, DUHT 
 
Dr Ravin Ramtohal, GP 
 

2 Tricuro 
 
To receive a report from the 
Interim Managing Director of 
Tricuro on the position of Tricuro in 
respect of the management and 
status of services provided on 

The requested report will enable 
members to monitor and scrutinise the 
management and status of services 
provided by Tricuro. 

Report Phil Hornsby, Director Adult Social 
Care Commissioning BCP 
 
Graham Wilkin, Tricuro 
 
 
 

35

A
genda Item

 11



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

behalf of BCP Council, including 
quality improvement, safety and 
safeguarding. 
 
The Chair of the O&S Board and/or 
a representative of his will be 
invited to participate in the scrutiny 
of this item. 

 Meeting Date – 18 January 2021 
 

3 Home First programme  
(including update on Better Care 
Fund)  
 
To receive a report on the Home 
First programme which is being 
implemented by NHS partners and 
Councils to ensure that people 
leaving hospital do so in a timely 
way and return to their own home 
whenever possible; receive 
therapeutic and reablement 
support on leaving hospital and 
their longer term needs are 
assessed outside of a hospital 
setting.  
 

The item will provide information on 
the introduction of a Home First model 
of hospital discharge which NHS 
partners and Councils have 
implemented from 8/10/2020 in line 
with national guidance implemented 
during the Coronavirus pandemic.  
The report will provide information on 
how hospital discharge has been 
managed throughout the Coronavirus 
period; on the experience of the 
public; the impact on the Better Care 
Fund and the financial implications for 
the Council.  

Report Phil Hornsby. Service Director, 
Adult Social Care, Commissioning  
David Vitty, Service Director, Adult 
Social Care, Services 
 

36



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

4 COVID19 Update 
 
To receive an update from Public 
Health Dorset and Adult Social 
Care Services on COVID19; 
including an update on the 
Outbreak Management Plan. 
 

To enable the Committee to monitor 
the ongoing pandemic and scrutinise 
the relevant organisations’ responses 
to COVID19. 

TBC Sam Crowe, Director of Public 

Health Dorset 

 
Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director 
Adult Social Care BCP. 

5 Suicide Prevention Plan  
 
To receive a report on the 
Council’s Suicide Prevention Plan. 

To offer recommendations on the 
BCP Council Suicide Prevention Plan 
in advance of its consideration by 
Cabinet. 

Report  Sam Crowe, Director of Public 

Health Dorset 

 

Sophia Callaghan 

Assistant Director of Public Health 

 

 

 Meeting Date – 8 March 2021 
6 Adult Social Care: Point of First 

Contact Service 

 
To receive a progress report in 
respect of the new adult social 
care intake service. 
 
(Delayed start – October 2020) 

To ensure that the Committee has 
information on the progress of the 
new adult social care intake service. 

Report David Vitty 
Director of Adult Social Care 
Services 
 
Tim Branson 
Service Manager 
Adult Social Care 
 
 

7 The Big Plan – Update 

 
The update will allow members to 
monitor the progress of the 

Report Jo O’Connell 
Jen Collis-Heavens 
Mark Harris – CCG 

37



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

To receive an update on the 
progress in delivery of The Big 
Plan, including health checks and 
the employment offer as well as 
the impact of COVID19. 
 

highlighted areas of BCP Council’s 
‘Big Plan’. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

8 Social Care Developing Market 
Statement 
 
To receive a report on the 
developing social care market 
including information on the 
service area’s expenditure and 
high-level strategies. 
 

The item will inform the Committee 
and enable them to scrutinise relevant 
areas of the social care market.  

Report Phil Hornsby, Director Adult Social 
Care Commissioning BCP 

 Meeting Date TBC 

9 Dorset Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) – Mental Health 
Rehabilitation Service  
 
That an update on the strategic 
business case, including the 
financial details of the service 
would be provided to members. 
The next steps would also be 
highlighted. 
 

The information provided will ensure 
that Councillors are aware of the 
proposals in this respect, and the 
views of the next stage of the process 
to be undertaken by the CCG.  

Presentation 
and report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mark Harris Dorset CCG / Elaine 
Hurll Dorset CCG 

38



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

10 Dementia Services Review  
 
To receive an update on progress 
since the Dementia Services 
Review. 
 

To inform O&S of progress in 
Dementia Services November 
2021/January 2022.  

Report  Mark Harris Dorset CCG 

11 Health services for people who 
are Homeless and Rough 
Sleeping 

Further discussions required with 
Committee to establish the benefits 
and how scrutiny could be conducted.  
 

TBC TBC 

12 Structural Review of 
Safeguarding Community Safety 
Partnership 

To ensure the committee are informed 
of any changes to the arrangements. 

Report Barrie Crook 

Independent Chair, Bournemouth, 

Christchurch and Poole 

Safeguarding Adults Board. 

13 Deprivation of Liberty 
Applications 
 
(Delayed implementation date of 
April 2022). 

For the Committee to be informed of 
the changes in legislation to the 
Deprivation of Liberty Applications.  

TBC Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director, 

Adult Social Care. 

 

 

Commissioned Work 
Work commissioned by the Committee (for example task and finish groups and working groups) is listed below. 
 
Note – to provide sufficient resource for effective scrutiny, one item of commissioned work will run at a time. Further commissioned work can 
commence upon completion of previous work. 

14 The South West Ambulance 
Service Trust Improvement and 
Financial Investment Plan  
 

To scrutinise the impact of the 
improvement and financial investment 
plan on the response times and 
outcomes of the Ambulance Service 

Possible 
joint scrutiny 
with Dorset 
Council 

Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director 

for Adult Social Care 

 

39



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

 

15 The implementation and 
performance of NHS Dorset 
Urgent Integrated Care Services 
 
 

To scrutinise the impact, service 
performance and outcomes of the 
NHS Dorset Urgent Integrated Care 
Services (April 2020, 1 year after 
implementation). 

Possible 
Joint 
Scrutiny 
with Dorset 
Council 

Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director 

for Adult Social Care  

 

16 External Scrutiny – Quality 
Accounts  
 
(Item has been postponed until at 
least the end of the year due to 
COVID19). 
 

Scrutiny leads for NHS Dorset Quality 
Accounts finalised and sent to the 
Principal Officer of Planning and 
Quality Accounts on 3 February 2020, 
to begin meeting arrangements.  
 
 

To ensure 
Committee 
members 
have the 
opportunity 
to scrutinise 
the quality 
accounts of 
NHS Trusts. 

Elaine Stratman 

Principal Officer Planning and 

Quality Assurance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17 Adult Social Care Charging 
Strategy – Update 
 
A request from Cllr H Allen for a 
brief, general update on the 
implementation of the Adult Social 
Care Charging Strategy, it’s 
progress and any cases of 
mitigation action. 
 
(Expected Summer 2021) 
 

To allow the Committee to monitor the 
progress of delivering the strategy and 
identify any areas requiring further 
scrutiny. 

Report David Vitty - Director of Adult Social 

Care Services 

 

Peter Courage - Head of Service 

Development, Adult Social Care 

Development Session Forward Planning 2021 

40



 Subject and background Anticipated benefits and 
value to be added by O&S 
engagement 
 

How will 
the 
scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

 
Work to be discussed by Committee at Development Sessions and to be strategically placed on the Forward Plan when as and when 
necessary. 
 

Training Required for new members of the Committee and any other associated training. 
 

 
 

41



T
his page is intentionally left blank

42


	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Action Sheet
	9 Report on the Development and Performance of Tricuro
	Tricuro Report

	11 Forward Plan

